
Please note refreshments are available in the room from 5.30pm

Agenda
1. Introductions and Apologies  

County Councillor Brown

To note who is attending and any apologies for absence.

2. Notes of the Meeting and Matters Arising from 23 
January 2019  

(Pages 1 - 6)

County Councillor Brown

To agree for accuracy the notes of the meeting and receive any matters arising.

3. Getting to Good Plan (10 mins)  (Pages 7 - 38)
Sally Allen, Corporate Management Team

To receive information on the Getting to Good Plan and how the Board can 
contribute to the plan.

4. LINX - Housing Activities (30 mins)  
LINX – Lancashire's Children in Care Council

To receive information on what each district offers care leavers with regards to 
housing/accommodation.

Receive findings on what the Young Inspectors have gleaned from carrying out 
inspections of accommodation where our children in care live.

5. What would the Board want from District Councils on 
Housing and Suitable Accommodation (40 mins)  
Barbara Bath, Fostering, Adoption, Residential and Youth Offending Team

In group work, to scope out questions that the Board would like to ask District 
Councils on how they support care leavers with housing and suitable 
accommodation and to draft a letter from the Board to accompany the questions.

6. Current Activity (30 mins)  (Pages 39 - 40)
Rachel Blundell and Dave Carr, Policy, Information and Commissioning (Start 
Well)

To receive an update on what work is being done around Block Purchasing and 
Supported Accommodation for Care Leavers.

Corporate Parenting Board
Thursday, 28th March, 2019 at 6.00 pm 

Committee Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, 
County Hall, Preston



7. Corporate Parenting Board Action Plan (10 mins)  (Pages 41 - 46)
Barbara Bath, Fostering, Adoption, Residential and Youth Offending Team

To agree the action plan and have as a standing item on the agenda, which will 
evidence the impact on how the Board is taking forward the objectives as set out 
in the Corporate Parenting Strategy.

8. Any Other Business  
County Councillor Brown

To receive any other business.

9. Date and Time of Next Meeting  
County Councillor Brown

The date and time of the next meeting is as follows:

Wednesday, 22 May 2019 at 6.00pm in Committee Room 'D' – Henry Bolingbroke 
Room, County Hall, Preston, PR1 8RJ.



1

Lancashire County Council

Corporate Parenting Board

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 23rd January, 2019 at 6.00 pm 
in Savoy Suite 1 - County Hall - The Exchange

Present: Members

County Councillor Ian 
Brown

- Lancashire County Council

County Councillor 
Phillippa Williamson

- Lancashire County Council

County Councillor 
Stephen Clarke

- Lancashire County Council

Sally Allen - Interim Director of Children's Services, LCC
Marieta Birt - Fostering Forum
Michelle - LINX Representative
Kris - LINX Representative

Co-opted members

Caroline Waldron - Safeguarding and Looked After Children, 
East Lancs CCG and BwD CCG

Amanda Mansfield - Independent Reviewing Officer, LCC
Dylan Williams - Barnardo's
Yoni Ejo - Leaving Care, LCC

Other Attendees

Jane Hylton - Leaving Care, LCC
Tracey Ellmore - Department for Work and Pensions
Barbara Bath - Fostering, Adoption, Residential and YOT 

Team, LCC
Neil Kelly - The Children's Society
Debra Jones - Democratic Services, LCC
Natasha Wright - Barnardo's
Aaron Walmsley-
Fishwick

- Apprentice, LCC

Reece Hobin - Apprentice, LCC
Gavin Redhead - Participation Lead, LCC
Rachel Blundell - Financial Intelligence Manager, LCC
Sam Gorton - Democratic Services, LCC

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2

1.  Introductions and Apologies

All were welcomed to the meeting and apologies were received and noted from 
County Councillors Gardiner and Gibson, Catherine, Michelle Davies, Audrey 
Swann, Roxanne McAllister and Stephen Young.

Edwina Grant OBE, Executive Director of Education and Children's Services 
introduced herself to the Board and informed them of the two main areas she 
would be wanting the Board to focus on.  These were:

i) Education – educational attainments for children looked after and care 
leavers is not quite as good as it could be and not consistent enough.  This 
whole area needs looking at and this is something the Board can take 
forward at a future meeting.

ii) Accommodation – where are all Lancashire children and young people in 
care as well as those placed in Lancashire from other Authorities living, 
was it safe and secure and what people can offer our children and young 
people, ie district councils.

CC Brown confirmed that the Board would ensure that the May meeting would be 
on housing and accommodation and representatives from the district councils 
would be invited to attend.

Resolved: That CC Brown agreed to liaise further with Edwina Grant OBE and 
Sally Allen, Interim Director for Children's Services with regards the 
May 2019 Corporate Parenting Board meeting to ensure we have 
representation from the District Councils in attendance.

2.  Notes of the Meeting and Matters Arising from 27 November 2019

The minutes from the previous meeting held on 27 November 2018 were agreed 
as a correct record.

3.  Objective 3 from the Corporate Parenting Strategy

Jane Hylton, Leaving Care Development Officer, Lancashire County Council 
gave on update on Lancashire's Care Leavers Local Offer and in setting up the 
Local Offer had been working closely with other Authorities and sharing good 
practice and that other Authorities were impressed by what Lancashire was 
offering.

The Local Offer has been developed over the last 12 months and a lot of work 
and consultation with young people has taken place.  It is still a work in progress, 
however the progress made is on the right track.

Aaron Walmsley-Fishwick gave a demonstration to the Board on how to search 
for the website by searching for Lancashire Care Leaver Local Officer or find it 
via Lancashire County Council's Youth Zone page 
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/youthzone/care-leavers-local-offer/. 

Page 2

https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/youthzone/care-leavers-local-offer/


3

Board members were asked to partner up with a young person and use an 
electronic device to search for the webpage and navigate around it.

Following this exercise, comments were received from the Board on how they 
found the website.  Comments were as follows:

 Tracey Ellmore, Department for Work and Pensions commented that there 
were updates on Universal Credits required.

 Possibly look at amending the title "Who is a Care Leaver" to "What Am I 
Entitled To" and then putting a link to "Who is a Care Leaver" on the 
webpage.

 Need to ensure colours are suitable on the webpage for dyslexia/colour 
blindness.

 Natasha Wright to be included in the Barnardo's contact list.
 Clarification on areas need to be included on the website ie where North, 

South, Central and East covers so young people can see which area they are 
living in.

 To liaise with Caroline Waldron on GPs and Dentists information and anything 
else health related that would be beneficial to care leavers.

 Ensure the link is also available on the Lancashire County Council internet 
and intranet.

Resolved: That Jane Hylton to ensure that all comments above are actioned.

Personal Advisers, Independent Reviewing Officers and Care Leaver Social 
Workers needs to spend time with young people to navigate them around the 
website.  Also need to be signposting colleagues and care leavers to the website 
as well.

If there are any updates ie staff, changes in legislation, to ensure that they are 
emailed to the mailbox careleaverLO@lancashire.gov.uk.

Any events to be shared can be submitted via the website also.

It was suggested that Permanence and Corporate Parenting Board and partner 
agencies have the Lancashire Care Leavers Local Offer link on their webpages.  
Also have all the Local Offers from all Authorities on the Gov.uk website.

Resolved: That Tracey Ellmore agreed to look at having the link available on 
the Gov.UK website.

It would also be very useful for support groups for foster carers to understand the 
Local Offer and it would be beneficial for the young people to present this to 
them.  Marieta Birt agreed to take this to the Fostering Forum meeting and if 
agreed would take this forward with Jane Hylton.

Page 3

mailto:careleaverLO@lancashire.gov.uk


4

Resolved: That Marieta Birt agreed to raise the idea at Fostering Forum and if 
they were in agreement with young people presenting the Local 
Offer at the Support Groups to contact Jane Hylton to arrange this 
with Barnardo's and LINX.

Jane Hylton requested that the Board read the National Implementation Adviser 
for Care Leavers' First Year Report from the Department for Education.  Mark 
Riddell MBE, National Implementation Adviser for care leavers had visited over 
40 local Authorities and hopefully would be coming to Lancashire in the near 
future.

4.  LINX (Lancashire's Children in Care Council)

Since the last meeting LINX and care leavers had been involved with Liverpool 
City Council's Children in Care Council in recruiting staff for two new residential 
homes in Liverpool.

Sue Prynn, Department for Work and Pensions was welcomed to the meeting 
and discussed barriers that care leavers faced when applying for work which had 
been shared with her first hand from care leavers she had spoken too on 
Universal Credit and support they received, good and bad, from staff at the 
Department for Wok and Pensions.

The Board were informed of the discretionary fund from £100-£300 which was 
available via the work coach which helped fund transport including for interviews 
and clothing for interviews.

Once again it was reiterated that if care leavers disclosed their circumstances it 
could be kept on file so that staff at the Department for Work and Pensions could 
offer the right advice and benefits for them.

Department for Work and Pensions were also looking at revisiting their questions 
for when a care leaver attends for their first visit.

The biggest issue for the Department for Work and Pensions is not knowing 
when a care leaver is approaching 18 years of age.  This is something that needs 
to be agreed with Lancashire County Council and the Department for Work and 
Pensions, however data protection rules have to be adhered to.  There is a Care 
Leaver Covenant which is to be agreed by the Department for Work and 
Pensions and the Local Authority that has not been signed up to by Lancashire 
County Council as of present.

Resolved: That County Councillor Ian Brown agreed to take this forward and 
discuss further with Sally Allen, Acting Director of Children's Social 
Care and Barbara Bath, Head of Fostering, Adoption, Residential 
and Youth Offending the Care Leaver Covenant and the benefits 
this would have in working with the council and the Department for 
Work and Pensions.

Page 4



5

Tracey Ellmore complimented the young people for their presentations to staff at 
various job centres and wanted to roll this out to all 22 job centres where young 
people shared their life experiences.  In order to roll this out to all the job centres 
it would be useful to do this via a video, instead of the young people having to 
visit all the job centres and if this is not viable then look at using the telekit 
equipment or getting all staff in one place for young people to deliver it once.

5.  Objective 7 from the Corporate Parenting Strategy

Jane Hylton, Leaving Care Team and Rachel Blundell, Policy, Information and 
Commissioning (Start Well) Team presented this item to the Board.

The Board participated in an exercise and split into three groups and worked 
alongside the young people who had accessed the setting home allowance.  
Comments from the group work are attached.

Rachel presented the PowerPoint attached to the Board, explaining the current 
payment methods and the issues young people have reported they face with 
these methods.  Young people reported that they found practices were different 
in each of the areas which they found hard to understand especially when they 
talked to other care leavers across the County.  Also there were issues with 
driving lessons and payments with some instructors having to wait up to 60 days 
for payments and therefore cancelling future lessons for the young people.

Resolved: That Rachel Blundell will look further at the issues of different 
practices across the County with regards setting up home 
allowances and issues with driving lesson payments

Going forward, there are proposals for a pre-paid card for young people making 
their first move to a property, which would be far more flexible than the current 
payment scheme.  The card would be loaded with funds incrementally and used 
with a PIN number in the same way as any debit/credit card, however no cash 
withdrawals.  Each card would be operational for 12 months and then cancelled 
and any funds moved back to the central fund.  Each Personal Advisor team 
would operate a 'team card' and any setting up home allowance items would be 
purchased via this after the first 12 months when the young person's cards have 
been cancelled.  The pilot would be reviewed after one year.

Plans for these proposals are to be presented to the council's Senior 
Management Team on 5 February 2019.

Resolved: That the young people were happy with proposals and welcomed 
this possible change to the setting up home allowance.

6.  Young People's Benchmarking Forum

This item was deferred to the next meeting.

Page 5



6

7.  Any Other Business

Corporate Parenting Video for PROUD Event

The Board were asked if they would be involved with a video for the PROUD 
Event for Children Looked After and Care Leavers to be shown in the night.

Resolved: That the Board agreed to be involved with the video for PROUD.  
Gavin Redhead would take this forward and contact the Board 
members as necessary.

Care Leaver Christmas Hampers

Sam Gorton report back on the success of the Care Leaver Christmas hampers 
that were distributed during the month of December.  Donations were received 
staff at the county council, Clinical Commissioning Groups, Rainbows 
Development Centre, BT Lancashire Services, Barnardo's, Children's Society 
and family and friends of Colleagues.  Attendees at the Lancashire Day Event 
also gave donations and proceeds from the sale of Lancashire badges were also 
donated raising £874.86 which was used to buy more gifts and also vouchers for 
care leavers who did not receive a hamper.  Hampers and donations were split 
as follows:

East - 170 hampers and £200 of vouchers.

North – 80 hampers and £200 of vouchers and two large boxes full of household 
items for the North to distribute.

Central – 80 hampers and £200 of vouchers and one box of female gifts, two 
boxes full of food and chocolates and one box of household items for Central to 
distribute.

20 bags for life hampers full of food and gifts for the Care Leavers Christmas 
meal on Saturday 22 December.

In total, there had been 410 care leavers reached in hampers and vouchers with 
the additional boxes of goods reaching many more, so approximately 500 care 
leavers.

We are hoping that this could be reciprocated again in 2019.

8.  Date and Time of Next Meeting

The date and time of the next meeting was:

Thursday, 28 March 2019 at 6.00pm in Committee Room 'C' – Duke of Lancaster 
Room, Count Hall, Preston, PR1 8RJ.

Page 6



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 

 

January 2019 
 

 

 

 

Date to be reviewed: April 2019 

Associated performance trackers to be reviewed every six weeks. 

Plan to be reviewed and updated as required. 

 

Plan to be reviewed and updated as required. 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lancashire's Vision  
 

               

 

P
age 8



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

3 
 

We will deliver the outcomes in the plan in partnership through an understanding of the lived experience of a child or young person by:  
 

 Delivering the right service, at the right time, by the right people through effective wellbeing and preventative strategies.  

 Purposeful and effective social work and care intervention, engaging children, young people and families by building on their strengths. 

 Focusing on permanence, by delivering lasting and sustainable outcomes for children, young people and their families.  
 
 

Introduction  
 

Our services for children have improved significantly.  Our 2015 Ofsted inspection rated the overall service provision to be inadequate.  In 2018 
the judgement was that services were no longer inadequate, but require improvement to be good. Our Adoption Service was judged to be good.  
Ofsted found that staff were positive, open to learning and committed to their work with children and families.  The service knows itself well and 
appropriate action was in place to improve services and that multi-agency strategic partnerships are stronger leading to a more shared 
approach.   

 

There is still more to do to ensure that all children receive a consistently good service. In total, Ofsted made 11 recommendations about which 
we need to continue to strengthen and improve practice. They are categorised in six key areas: 
 

 
Effective Partnership Working 

Lead: Sally Allen 
 

We will ensure effective, collaborative partnership arrangements are in place which support the improvement of 
services to children and families. Specifically, with partners we will improve our response to children living with 
domestic abuse and neglect, ensuring services are focused on delivering effective, preventative and targeted 
support.     

 

Prevention 

Lead: Debbie Duffell 

We will work with partners to ensure that an effective range of multi-agency early help services are in place to 
support children and families when they first need help. We will continue to develop the Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) to ensure continued effective decision making and service provision at the front door.  

 
Purposeful Practice 
Lead: Bertie Goffe 

 

We will ensure that everything we do makes a tangible, positive difference to the lives of the children we work for 
and that we intervene at the lowest and least intrusive level possible. We will improve the quality of assessments 
and plans and spell out for families what needs to change and how this is likely to be achieved. We will also 
strengthen the critical challenge of first line managers and Independent Reviewing Officers to prevent drift and 
delay.   

 

Permanence and Children in 

We will work tirelessly with families to prevent the need for children to become looked after. Where children are 
not able to live safely with their family, we will ensure that plans for permanence are developed at the earliest 
opportunity. We will ensure care plans are more rigorously monitored and reviewed to reduce drift and delay, 
including the timely revocation of Care Orders where children have been successfully returned home.  

P
age 9



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

4 
 

Our Care 

Lead: Barbara Bath 

Stephen Belbin 

We want all our children to meet their potential. We will strive to improve educational attainment and health 
outcomes and will specifically focus on improving the educational attainment and progress of children looked after 
(CLA) at Key Stage 4. We want all our children who leave care to live healthy, successful, fulfilling lives. We will 
ensure that all our care leavers receive timely and accessible support to meet their financial, educational and 
emotional health needs.   

 

Effective Use of Performance 
Data 

Lead: Brendan Lee 

Whilst significant progress has been made in improving the accuracy of performance data, we need to improve 
the use of data so that it is an effective tool to help managers measure progress and examine trends. 

 

Workforce Development 

Lead: Victoria Gent 

We want our children and families to benefit from a sufficient, stable, suitably qualified and competent workforce. 
We recognise that our staff are our most valuable resource and we will continue to invest heavily in their 
development and progression. We need to consistently strengthen our retention of permanent staff across the 
county. We will build our training offer for social workers, support workers and managers, ensuring this is aligned 
to priority areas of development. 

 

 

Ofsted Inspection Report Recommendations (August 2018) Key Area 
1. Work with partners to ensure that an effective range of early help services is in place to support children 

and families when they first need help. 
Prevention 

2. Ensure that assessments clearly articulate risks and protective factors, provide robust analysis and spell 
out what needs to change and how that is likely to be achieved. 

Purposeful Practice 

3. Ensure that all plans for children in need, children subject to child protection plans, looked after children 
and care leavers are specific, measureable and outcome-focused. 

Purposeful Practice 

4. Ensure that the quality of critical challenge provided by first line managers, IROs in looked after reviews 
and conference chairs within child protection conferences are effective in avoiding drift and delay. 

Purposeful Practice 

5. Ensure that the local authority and partners share a common understanding of the risks associated with 
neglect, in all its different forms, and have the tools they need to monitor and measure their impact in 
managing change. 

Effective Partnership 
Working 

6. Improve the educational attainment and progress of children looked after at Key Stage 4. Permanence and 
Children in our Care 

7. Ensure that permanence planning, including for those children who return home, is rigorously monitored 
and reviewed on a consistent basis across the county to reduce the likelihood of drift and delay. 

Permanence and 
Children in our Care 

P
age 10



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

5 
 

8. Ensure that when children successfully return home, timely revocation hearings are held to secure 
permanence plans for them to remain in the care of their parents. 

Permanence and 
Children in our Care 

9. Ensure that care leavers receive timely and accessible support that meets their financial, educational and 
emotional health needs. 

Permanence and 
Children in our Care 

10. Improve the use of performance data so that it is an effective tool to help managers measure progress and 
examine trends. 

Effective Use of 
Performance Data 

11. Work with partners to ensure that responses for children and families living with domestic abuse are 
focused on delivering effective, preventative and targeted support. 

Effective Partnership 
Working 

 

Implementing the Improvement Plan 
 
This plan focuses on the actions required to deliver the Ofsted recommendations and other key priorities identified in our self-assessment, with 
the aim of securing improvement and delivering consistently good services for Lancashire's children, young people and families.  
 
The plan sets out the actions that will be undertaken, the expected outcomes, improvement measures, lead officers, targets and due dates. 
More detailed action plans, led by specific Delivery Boards, will drive specific service improvement (see Appendix 1). Sitting alongside this 
document is our Purposeful Practice Framework and our Corporate Parenting Strategy. It is also part of a number of strategies and plans that fit 
together to deliver improvement for children (see Appendix 2).  The plan will be overseen by the Lancashire Getting to Good Board which will 
meet six weekly to review progress. 
 
Each outcome will be RAG rated, as part of our monitoring arrangements, with the status descriptions detailed below: 
 

RAG Table Status 
 

RED Tasks and or outcomes have not been met or the timescale has slipped. 
 

AMBER Tasks and outcomes are on track, milestones met, but full action(s) have not been completed. 
 

GREEN Tasks and outcomes or performance is on target. 
 

BLUE Completed. 
 

 

P
age 11



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

6 
 

Key Area 1: Effective Partnership Working     Lead: Sally Allen  

Outcome statements: 

 Effective, collaborative partnership working arrangements are in place which support the improvement of services to children and families. 

 Children who experience neglect have their needs identified and effectively managed.  

 Children who experience domestic abuse receive timely and appropriate support that meets their needs. 

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

1.1 Lead the development of effective collaborative partnership strategies and plans which support the improvement of services to 
children and families 

1.1.1 Establish a multi-agency strategic governance board, with 
strategic responsibility and accountability for the children's 
agenda.   

Recommendation 
1,5,6,8,11 

November 
2018 

Edwina Grant OBE 
Executive Director of Education and 

Children's Services 

1.1.2 Implement a co-produced strategy and action plan to improve 

education outcomes for children & young people (CYP) with 

SEND. 

Recommendation 
1 

June 2019 Stephen Belbin 

Local Authority Head of Education, 
Quality and Performance 

1.2 Embed an agreed approach to effectively identifying and managing neglect 

1.2.1 Develop a refreshed multi-agency Neglect Strategy in 
consultation with a wide range of partners to improve our 
response to neglect and ensure children have their needs 
identified and effectively managed. 

Recommendation 
5 

March 2019 Victoria Gent 
Head of Service, 

CSC, East Locality 
Jane Booth 

Chair of Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board (LSCB)  

1.2.2 Develop operational delivery plans to ensure effective and 
meaningful delivery of the updated strategy.  

Recommendation 
5 

April 2019 Victoria Gent 
Head of Service 

CSC, East Locality 
Jane Booth 

Chair of LSCB   

1.2.3 Deliver refreshed training to support the delivery of the 
Neglect Strategy. 

Recommendation 
5 

June 2019 Victoria Gent 
Head of Service, 

CSC, East Locality 
Chair of LSCB 

P
age 12



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

7 
 

1.2.4 Develop an online multi-agency toolkit to support the delivery 
of the Neglect Strategy. 

Recommendation 
5 

May 2019 Victoria Gent 
Head of Service 

CSC, East Locality 
Jane Booth 

Chair of LSCB 

1.2.5 Monitor and measure the impact of the Neglect Strategy and 
delivery plans to ensure we meet outcomes as detailed in the 
Neglect Strategy. 

 

Recommendation 
5 

October 
2019 

Victoria Gent 
Head of Service 

CSC, East Locality 
Jane Booth  

Chair of LSCB 

1.3  Ensure that effective, preventative and targeted support is in place for children and families living with domestic abuse  

1.3.1 Review the multi-agency response to domestic abuse, to 
ensure effective, preventative and targeted support pathways 
are in place for children and families. 

Recommendation 
11 

 

May 2019 

 

Brendan Lee 
Head of Service  

CSC, North Locality   

1.3.2 Develop and deliver a workforce development programme 
and work place policy to improve understanding of the impact 
of domestic abuse on children and to develop purposeful 
practice in this area. 

Recommendation 
11 

May 2019 Brendan Lee 
Head of Service  

CSC, North Locality 
 

1.3.3 Develop and deliver a workplace approach to improve the 
understanding of domestic abuse for employees and 
managers, identifying appropriate support to those affected, 
and recognising the impact on children and families. 

Recommendation 
11 

June 2019 Clare Platt  
Head of Health, Equity and 

Partnerships 
 

1.3.4 Recommission the Lancashire Domestic Abuse Perpetrator 
Programme to reduce the risk of reoffending and improve life 
chances within vulnerable households. 

Recommendation 
11 

April 2019 Clare Platt 
Head of Health, Equity and 

Partnerships 

1.3.5 Implement the use of Operation Encompass to improve the 
timeliness of information sharing and support to children 
experiencing domestic abuse. 

Recommendation 
11 

February 
2019 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of Safeguarding, 

Inspection & Audit (SIA) 
Jane Booth 

Chair of LSCB 

1.3.6 Improve the quality and timeliness of police vulnerable person 
reports to the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).  

Recommendation 
11 

March 2019 Andy Smith  
Acting Head of SIA 

 
 

P
age 13



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

8 
 

Key Area 2: Prevention     Lead: Debbie Duffell 

Outcome statement: 

 Effective services are in place to reduce the need for higher level services by ensuring that the right service is delivered, at the right time, by 
the right people through effective wellbeing and preventative strategies. 

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

2.1 Develop an effective range of early help services  

2.1.1 Develop a multi-agency Early Help Strategy, ensuring neglect 
is a central theme within the Early Help Strategy. 

Recommendation 
1 

September 
2019 

Debbie Duffell 
Head of Children, Family and 

Wellbeing (CFW) Service 

2.1.2 Work with NHS and social care partners to develop a directory 
of multi-agency universal and targeted resources across the 
county, to facilitate access to appropriate and timely early 
support. 

Recommendation 
1 

December  
2019 

Clare Platt 
Head of Health, Equity and 

Partnerships 

2.1.3 Commission an external edge of care service to reduce the 
need for children becoming looked after. 

Recommendation 
1 

September 
2019 

Dave Carr 
Head of Policy, Information and 

Commissioning 

2.2  Continue to develop effective MASH arrangements  

2.2.1 Improve the timeliness of decision making in the MASH. 
There is a statutory requirement to make a (threshold) decision 
within one working day of a referral (as outlined in Working 
Together, 2018) about the next steps and the type of response 
that is required. Any delay in the timeliness of decisions could 
potentially impact on the appropriate response needed to 
support a child or young person.  

Recommendation 
1 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

Ian Whitehead 
Chair of MASH & Demand 

Management Board 

2.2.2 Establish early help MASH referral posts to support multi-
agency use of the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) 
tool and identify appropriate early help intervention. 

Recommendation 
1 

January 2019 Debbie Duffell 
Head of CFW Service 

Andy Smith 
Head of SIA 

2.2.3 Embed the system of regular case audits in the MASH 
(including multi-agency audits) to identify themes, inform 
training and drive activity. 

Recommendation 
1 and 10 

April 2019 Andy Smith 
Acting Head of  SIA 

2.3 Embed the use of the Early Help and MASH modules on the Lancashire Child System (LCS) 

P
age 14



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

9 
 

2.3.1 Identify and secure multi-agency early help pathways to 
provide an appropriate level of support and agency response.  

Recommendation 
1 

April 2019 Debbie Duffell 
Head of CFW Service 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

2.3.2 Improve and secure appropriate and timely pathways for re-
escalation of cases back into Children's Social Care. 

Recommendation 
1 

April 2019 Debbie Duffell 
Head of CFW Service 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of  SIA 

 

Key Area 3: Purposeful Practice     Lead: Bertie Goffe 

Outcome statement: 

 Purposeful and effective social work practice is in place which: engages children, young people and families; builds on their strengths; 
makes a tangible and positive difference to their lives; and intervenes at the lowest and least intrusive level possible. 

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

3.1 Develop shared values, principles, knowledge and skills 

3.1.1 Ensure that social workers and managers understand the 
Knowledge and Skills Statement (KSS) and accreditation 
process and there is a clear plan for how they will be 
prepared and endorsed for this process.  

ALL March 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker  

3.1.2 Develop a Statement of Social Work in Lancashire, which 
sets out our values and principles, with clear links to the 
KSS. This Statement, with support and endorsement from 
all senior managers, will help front-line practitioners and 
managers practice in a more strengths-based way, putting 
children and families at the heart of practice.    

ALL February 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

3.1.3 Develop a clear communications pathway to promote 
values and aspirations of what good looks like. Ensure 
Children's Services has an intranet site that has up to date 
information, with clear links to Tri-X procedures, including 
practice tools, current forms, templates and guidance, as 
well as information about learning and development 
activities.  

ALL April 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

3.1.4 Refresh all purposeful practice workshops, delivered by ALL March 2019 Bertie Goffe 

P
age 15



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

10 
 

Advanced Practitioners to ensure that they: 
- Promote the clear values and principles of social work 

set out in our Statement of Social Work in Lancashire;  
- Embed the KSS; 
- Are centred on the journey of the child;  
- Support the delivery of the Ofsted recommendations.  

The quality of practice will show clear improvement as a 
result, with Advanced Practitioners following up with 1:1 
applied learning and reflective group supervision with front-
line staff, to ensure they are applying the learning from the 
workshops. Audit findings will be used to monitor progress 
monthly and further target areas for improvement.  

Principal Social Worker 

3.2 Embed the use of a more strengths based Risk Sensible Model 

3.2.1 Commission bespoke training to support more strengths 
based practice and taking into consideration the wider 
workforce. As a result of this training we will see 
improvements in audit in respect of relationship based 
practice with positive outcomes for children and families. 

Recommendation 
2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 11  

Plan In place by 
March 2019 

Victoria Gent 
Head of Service  

CSC, East Locality 

3.2.2 Embed a culture of learning throughout the organisation 
that uses the findings from our internal and external quality 
assurance activity and performance data to improve 
outcomes for children and families. Locality Heads of 
Service to have a programme of engagement activity with 
their workforce to embed learning and improve practice.  

Recommendation 
10 

September  
2019 

Brendan Lee 

Victoria Gent 

Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

3.3 Improve the quality of assessments  

3.3.1 Deliver training based on best practice to ensure the quality 
of social work assessments is consistently good and is 
available to all social workers across children's services. 
Advanced Practitioners to follow up the purposeful practice 
workshops on assessment with 1:1 and reflective group 
supervision sessions with social workers across all 
localities, to ensure practitioners are putting the learning 
into practice and that assessments include a clear analysis 

Recommendation 
2 

New programme 
to be delivered 

from March 2019 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

P
age 16



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

11 
 

and focus on impact and outcomes for children and young 
people. The quality of assessments to show improvement 
through our audit findings. This will include a more targeted 
approach to audit following social worker attendance at 
workshops to test out their learning and the impact on the 
quality of their practice. 

3.3.2 Deliver joint training sessions across all the localities with 
Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) and front-line 
managers to: 
a) Gain a shared understanding of the requirements of a 

good assessment; 
b) Clearly articulate what best practice looks like in 

accordance with the Ofsted grade descriptors; 
c) Enable positive critical challenge and professional 

respect.  
As a result we will see evidence of critical challenge by 
managers and IROs, resulting in robust assessments, 
plans and reviews. This will address drift and delay for 
children and families. 

Recommendation 
2 

Commence 
February 2019 

Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA  

3.3.3 The Advanced Practitioners to deliver Manager Learning 
Circles to: 
a) Increase knowledge of what a good assessment looks 

like;  
b) Enable confident challenge to front-line staff; 
c) Increase the number of signed-off good quality 

assessments.  
We will see improved quality of assessments, with social 
workers 'getting it right first time' as their assessment skills 
improve.  

Recommendation 
2 

Pilot November 
2018  

Roll out 
February 2019 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

3.3.4 Utilise findings from regular case audits on the quality of 
assessments to identify themes, inform training and drive 
improvement at a local level. Locality Heads of Service to 
have a programme of engagement activity with their 
managers around the findings from audit and how these 
findings are used to ensure improved outcomes and impact 

Recommendation  

2 and 10 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 

Victoria Gent 

Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC  

P
age 17



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

12 
 

of our involvement for children and young people. David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.3.5 Utilise service wide findings from case audits on the quality 
of assessments to inform activity and secure a consistent 
county-wide approach. The Director of Children's Services 
and Director of Children's Social Care have a line of sight 
via the Principal Social Worker, to understand the quality of 
practice and any barriers to learning and improvement.   

Recommendation 
2 and 10 

March 2019 Sally Allen 

Acting Director of CSC 

David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.4 Ensure that plans are specific, measureable and outcome-focused 

3.4.1 The Advanced Practitioners to deliver training on SMART, 
child-impact focused plans, available to all staff across 
CSC, Inclusion Service, and Children with Disabilities 
Teams. The Advanced Practitioners to follow up the 
training with 1:1 and reflective group supervision sessions 
with social workers across all localities, to ensure 
practitioners are putting the learning into practice and that 
plans are SMART and are linked to the analysis within the 
assessment, focused on the impact for children and young 
people. The quality of plans to show improvement through 
our audit findings. This will include a more targeted 
approach to audit following social worker attendance at 
workshops to test out their learning and the impact on the 
quality of their practice. 

Recommendation 
3 

New programme 
to be delivered 

from March 2019 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

3.4.2 Deliver joint training sessions across all the localities with 
Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) and front-line 
managers to: 
a) Gain a shared understanding of the requirements of a 

good plan; 
b) Clearly articulate what best practice looks like in 

accordance with the Ofsted grade descriptors; 

c) Enable positive critical challenge and professional 
respect; 

d) Ensure understanding of the integration of plans e.g.; 

Recommendation 
3 

April 2019 Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA  

P
age 18



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

13 
 

Education, Health & Care Plan (EHCP), Personal 
Education Plan (PEP) and health assessment.  

As a result we will see evidence of critical challenge by 
managers and IROs, resulting in robust assessments, 
plans and reviews. This will address drift and delay for 
children and families. 

3.4.3 The Advanced Practitioners to deliver Manager Learning 
Circles to: 
a) Increase knowledge of what a good plan looks like;  
b) Enable confident challenge to front-line staff; 
c) Increase the number of signed-off good quality plans. 

We will see improved quality of plans, with social workers 
'getting it right first time' as their care planning skills 
improve. 

Recommendation 
3 

Pilot November 
2018  

Roll out 
February 2019 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

3.4.4 Enhance elements of the Personal Education Plan (PEP) 
to: 

 Include long term aspirations targets; 

 Strengthen the influence of the child / young 
person's voice; 

 Increase the input of carers; 

 Increase the focus on strengths and interests; 

 Ensure key assessments, such as the strengths and 
difficulties questionnaire (SDQ), are better able to 
inform priorities and strategies for children and 
young people; 

 Identify system changes related to the PEP that will 
support greater efficiency and security.  

Recommendation 
3 and 6 

February 2019  Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

3.4.5 Review the current EHCP process to ensure the agreed 
pathway is fully embedded across all organisations.  

Recommendation 
3 

January 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.4.6 Utilise findings from regular case audits on the quality of 
plans to identify themes, inform training and drive 
improvement at a local level. Locality Heads of Service to 
have a programme of engagement activity with their 

Recommendation 
3 

September 2019 Brendan Lee 

Victoria Gent 

P
age 19



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

14 
 

managers around the findings from audit and how these 
findings are used to ensure improved outcomes and impact 
of our involvement for children and young people. 
 
 

Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC  

David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.4.7 Utilise service wide findings from case audits on the quality 
of plans to inform activity and secure a consistent county-
wide approach. The Director of Children's Services and 
Director of Children's Social Care have a line of sight via 
the Principal Social Worker, to understand the quality of 
practice and any barriers to learning and improvement.   

Recommendation 
3 and 10 

March 2019 Sally Allen 
Acting Director of CSC 

 
David Graham       

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.5  Improve the quality of critical challenge by first line managers and IROs  

3.5.1 Deliver training on quality and critical challenge through the 

Leadership Academy, IRO development days and joint 

training sessions with IROs and front-line managers. As a 

result we will see improvement in the quality of 

assessments, plans and reviews, with interventions 

delivered within appropriate timescales for the child, 

addressing drift and delay, with improved outcomes for 

children and families.  

Recommendation 
4 

Commence 
March 2019 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head SIA 

3.5.2 The Advanced Practitioners to deliver Manager Learning 

Circles with a focus on improving the quality of critical 

challenge. 

d) Increase knowledge of what a good looks like;  
e) Enable confident challenge to front-line staff; 
f) Ensure that all signed-off work is good. 

We will see improved quality of work, with the right 
intervention at the right time, addressing drift and delay for 
the child/young person.  

Recommendation 
4 

Pilot November 
2018  

Roll out 
February 2019 

Bertie Goffe 
Principal Social Worker 

3.5.3 Improve the ability of front-line managers to provide  

reflective superviusion through attendance at the 

Leadership Academy, including the Research in Practice 

Recommendation 
4 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Brendan Lee 

Victoria Gent 

P
age 20



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

15 
 

and Bournmouth University modules covering reflective 

supervision.  We will continue to strengthen reflective 

supervision with first line managers to enable reflection on 

the quality of practice and facilitate quality, critical 

challenge. We will improve management oversight of 

practice through supervision activity which will be 

measured through our audit framework. 

Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

3.5.4 Increase opportunities for peer challenge, shadowing and 

collaboration with Blackpool and Blackburn with Darwen 

local authorities. This will enable continued learning, 

providing external challenge and scrutiny of practice, 

supporting further improvement.   

 

Recommendation 
4 

April 2019 Sally Allen 

Acting Director CSC 

Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

3.5.5 Ensure that intelligence regarding the quality of practice 
and performance data is triangulated, to identify themes 
and trends that will inform the learning of front-line 
practitioners.  

Recommendation 
4 and 10 

February 2019 Brendan Lee 

Victoria Gent 

Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

David Graham 

Acting Head of inclusion 

Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

3.5.6 Develop guidance for IROs on chairing Children Looked 

After (CLA) reviews and Child Protection Conferences to 

focus their challenge more effectively on SMART 

outcomes.  

Recommendation 
4 

January 2019 Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

 
 
 
 

P
age 21



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

16 
 

Key Area 4: Permanence and Children in our Care      Lead: Barbara Bath & Stephen Belbin 

Outcome statements: 

 Children in Lancashire receive the right service at the right time that improves their outcomes.  

 Children are only removed from their family environment where we are able to improve their life chances and outcomes. 

 Where a child does need to come into our care, we ensure that we develop plans for stable and permanent care at the earliest possible 
opportunity.  

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

4.1  Ensure that children are only brought into care when it is in their best interests to do so 

4.1.1 Share the findings from the Care Crisis Review report and 
implement a training plan to explore the learning from 
this.  

Recommendation 
2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 

10, 11 

From January 
2019 

Josie Lee 

Improvement Partner 

4.1.2 Ensure that the Statement of Social Work in Lancashire, 
clearly sets out the principle that children are only brought 
into care, when it is in their best interests to do so.  

Recommendation 
2, 3, 4, 7,  

 

February 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

4.1.3 Review the 'Becoming Looked After Panels' and monthly 
Resource Panels to ensure consistency and 
effectiveness. 

Recommendation 
2, 3, 4, 7, 10  

February 2019 Sally Allen 
Acting Director of CSC  

4.1.4 Commissioning of a strengths based practice model to 
embed a culture of working alongside families to develop 
plans to support children within their families, when safe 
to do so. 

Recommendation 
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 11 

April 2019  Victoria Gent 
Head of Service, 

CSC, East Locality 

4.2 For children looked after using Section 20 of The Children Act 1989, further improve children's written records so it is clear 
why they are looked after and what the care episode is expected to achieve   

4.2.1 Develop guidance on good practice re Section 20 
decision making for social workers and managers. 

Recommendation 
2, 3, 4, 7, 8 

March 2019 Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.2.2 Develop guidance on good practice re the recording of 
management decisions for social work managers at 
critical points in the child's journey. 

Recommendation 
4, 7, 8 

March 2019 Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.3 Ensure that effective use is made of local, quality, permanent provision that can meet the needs of Lancashire children 

4.3.1 Deliver training on 'The Right Child, Right Placement.'  Recommendation 
3, 4, 7, 8 

From January 
2019 

Bertie Goffe 
Principal Social Worker 

P
age 22



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

17 
 

4.3.2 Work collaboratively with agency framework providers to 
seek to prioritise Lancashire children for Lancashire 
placements. 

Recommendation 
2, 3, 9, 10 

Monthly Dave Carr 
Head of Policy, Information & 

Commissioning  

4.3.3 Develop new commissioning arrangements to block 
purchase up to half of our predictable need for agency 
children's home placements. 

Recommendation 
7, 9, 10 

Service to 
Commence 

September 2019 

Dave Carr 
Head of Policy, Information & 

Commissioning  

4.3.4 Implement and embed Placement Stability Meetings. Recommendation 

7, 8 

Implement 
January 2019 

Review progress 
April 2019 

Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
Barbara Bath  
Head of FARY 
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.3.5 Undertake analysis of issues impacting on disruptions 
and use learning to improve procedures and processes. 

Recommendation 

7, 8, 10 

Quarterly Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.4 Embed a consistent and rigorous approach to permanence planning to reduce the likelihood of drift and delay 

4.4.1 Establish a broader definition of permanence and kinship 
through the Statement of Social Work in Lancashire.  

Recommendation 
7 

February  2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

4.4.2 Revise the care planning protocol to ensure processes 
and policies are clear and understood. 

Recommendation 
7 

January 2019 Brendan Lee 

Head of Service  

CSC North Locality 

4.4.3 Embed the use of the PLO Permanence Planning Tracker 
to prevent drift and delay and ensure timely permanence 
for children. 

Recommendation 
7 

Pilot Central 
November 2018 

Roll out January 
2019 

Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.4.4 Deliver training on permanence through care planning.  Recommendation 
7 

March 2019 Bertie Goffe 
Principal Social Worker 

4.4.5 Ensure that decisions are ratified at the Permanence Recommendation Quarterly Brendan Lee 

P
age 23



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

18 
 

Panel.  7 Monitoring Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
Barbara Bath 
Head of FARY  
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.4.6 Embed improved use of Family Group Conference, 
particularly at a non-statutory intervention level and at 
Initial Child Protection Conference, to involve the wider 
family at an early intervention stage in future planning. 

Recommendation 
7 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.4.7 Ensure that all CLA living away from parents have a life 
story book/ work completed. 

Recommendation 
7 

November 2019 Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC  

4.4.8 Monitor life storybooks/ work and ensure that this is 
recorded at CLA reviews. 

Recommendation 
7 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.4.9 Improve the quality of IRO challenge to drift and delay 
and the quality of plans. 

Recommendation 
7 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

4.4.10 Ensure permanence has been considered at the second 
CLA review in all cases. 
 

Recommendation 
7 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

4.5  Ensure timely revocation hearings are held to secure permanence plans for children to remain in the care of their parents  

4.5.1 Review all children who are placed at home with parents 
and seek discharge of orders where appropriate. 

Recommendation 
8 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

David Graham 
Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.5.2 Establish Discharge Panels and tracker to prevent drift Recommendation February 2019 Brendan Lee 

P
age 24



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

19 
 

and delay. 8 Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

4.5.3 Undertake regular audits of new placements made with 
parents and use the learning to further improve practice.  

Recommendation 
8 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.5.4 Improve the quality of written agreements, training and 
quality assurance. 

Recommendation 
8 

March 2019 Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA 

4.5.5 Ensure that management decisions are clearly recorded 
when children are returning home. 

Recommendation 
8 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.5.6 Ensure IRO challenge of drift and delay is evident and 
effective. 

Recommendation 
8 

Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Andy Smith 
Acting Head of SIA  

4.5.7 Audit and share understanding of drivers for the high 
numbers of Home Placement Agreements to inform 
improved practice.  

Recommendation 
8 

March 2019 Bertie Goffe 
Principal Social Worker 

4.6 Improve the educational attainment and progress of children looked after at Key Stage 4 

4.6.1 Increase frequency of tracking for Year 9/10/11 pupils 
who are failing to progress at the expected rate.  

Recommendation 
6 

Spring Term 
2019 

Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.2 Ensure no KS3 or 4 CLA pupil is moved to a location that 
will require a change of school, (except in urgent 
circumstances) without a discussion with the Virtual 
School. 

Recommendation 
6 

Monthly 
Monitoring 

Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 
David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.6.3 Research most effective support in Reading and Maths, 
including consultation with young people to identify 
barriers. 

Recommendation 
6 

April 2019 Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.4 Use PGG+ high needs funding to support evidence based 
strategies. 

Recommendation 
6 

April 2019 Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

P
age 25



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

20 
 

4.6.5 Increase Careers, Education, Information, Advice and 
Guidance (CEIAG) support and opportunities for positive 
experience of the workplace from Year 10 for our CLA 
placed in Lancashire schools.  

Recommendation 
6 

Work Experience 
-January 2019  

CEAIG – Y11 – 
Sept 2018 Y10 - 

Sept 2019 

Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.6  Increase training / events for carers (in both residential 
and foster care) to promote understanding of education 
systems and their support of progress and attainment. 

Recommendation 
6 

Spring Term 
2019 

Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.7 Increase the percentage of CLA who are educated in 
mainstream schools.  

Recommendation 
6 

July 2019 Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.8 Increase the number of CLA with SEND who have access 
to the GCSE curriculum. 

Recommendation 
6 

July 2019 Audrey Swann 
Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.6.9 Analyse the outcomes for CYP with SEND and agree 
targets for improvement. 

Recommendation 
6 

October 2019 David Graham 
Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.6.10 Implement a programme of action with schools to achieve 
the agreed targets for improvement.  

Recommendation 
6 

November 2019 David Graham 
Acting Head of Inclusion 

4.7 Ensure that care leavers receive timely, accessible support that meets their financial, educational & emotional health needs 

4.7.1 Develop training for all Personal Advisers and other 
support staff to ensure delivery of the Care Leavers Local 
Offer through improved planning and implementation of 
Pathway Plans. 

Recommendation 
9 and 4 

March 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service, CSC East Locality  

Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning and Development 

4.7.2 Provide targeted training to Personal Advisers and other 
support staff to enable them to better support children 
and young people with their emotional health needs. 

Recommendation 
9 

June 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service, CSC East Locality  

Rachel Rump 
Skills, Learning and Development 

4.7.3 Ensure our commitment to care leavers is clearly 
articulated in the Statement of Social Work in Lancashire 
and through training.  

Recommendation 
9 

February 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

P
age 26



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

21 
 

4.7.4 Review and amend the Pathway Plan template to provide 
a more robust and personalised plan with clear targets, 
strategies and timeframes. 

Recommendation 
9 and 4 

April 2019 Rose Howley 
Acting Head of Service 

CSC Central Locality  

4.7.5 To ensure we prepare young people for independence 
and improve the local offer, we will embed the use of 
ASDAN training and accreditation through foster carers, 
residential workers and Social Work Academy training. 

Recommendation 
9 

March 2019 Rose Howley 

Acting Head of Service     

CSC Central Locality 

4.7.6 Provide access for all care leavers who are NEET, to 
bespoke programmes of support.  

Recommendation 
9 

March 2019 Audrey Swann 

Virtual School Head Teacher 

Rose Howley 

Acting Head of Service      

CSC Central Locality 

4.7.7 Increase opportunities for care leavers to access work 
experience placements, work shadowing, apprenticeships 
and employment across Lancashire. 

Recommendation 
9 

March 2019 Audrey Swann 

Virtual School Head Teacher 

Rose Howley 

Acting Head of Service 

CSC Central Locality 

4.7.8 Establish a FE/Virtual School Forum to help develop 
appropriate courses and increase support for care 
leavers.  

Recommendation 
9 

March 2019 Audrey Swann 

Virtual School Head Teacher 

4.7.9 Provide opportunities for care leavers to increase their 
knowledge, understanding and experience of higher 
education. 

Recommendation 
9 

April 2019 Audrey Swann 

Virtual School Head Teacher 

Rose Howley 

Acting Head of Service     

CSC Central Locality 

4.7.10 Ensure that CLA and care leavers with SEND have their 
healthcare needs identified, assessed and met and that 

Recommendation 
9 

February 2019 Sally Allen  

P
age 27



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

22 
 

there is oversight across the local area.   Acting Director of CSC 

 

Key Area 5: Effective Use of Performance Data      Lead: Brendan Lee 

Outcome statements: 

 We know ourselves well, understand where our services are doing well and where we need to improve. 

 Using the information we gain from service data and performance review processes to make decisions which make a difference to the lives 
of children and families. 

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

5.1 Improve the use of performance data so that it is an effective tool to help managers measure progress and examine trends 

5.1.1 Develop a robust performance framework which gathers 
performance and intelligence from across Children's 
Services. 

Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 

Chair of Data, Quality and 
Performance (DQP) Group - Head 

of CSC North Locality 

5.1.2 Review existing mechanisms and reports to ensure that 
they support effective, efficient and timely analysis and 
recommendations. 

Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 

Chair of DQP Group - Head of 
CSC North Locality 

5.1.3 Incorporate data and analysis from partners into the 
performance framework.  

Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 

Chair of DQP Group - Head of 
CSC North Locality 

5.1.4 Through the effective use of data, Identify the most effective 
early help interventions and demonstrate the impact of 
those interventions on diverting demand from statutory 
services.  

Recommendation 
10 and 1 

April 2019 Debbie Duffell 

Head of CFW Service 

5.1.5 Complete and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Analysis 
(JSNA) to support understanding of health, social care and 
education need across the local area. 

Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Sally Richardson 

Principal Educational Psychologist 
  

5.1.6 Develop a shared data dashboard communicating shared 
performance measures to inform children/young people, 

Recommendation 
10 

April 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

P
age 28



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

23 
 

parent/carers and stakeholders of progress. 

5.1.7 Utilise data and intelligence provided through the 
performance framework to identify themes and inform 
training.   

Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Brendan Lee 

Head of Service    

CSC North Locality    

5.2  Further develop audit reporting to be more analytical and more effectively used by managers 

5.2.1 Deliver a programme of monthly and themed audits and 
reporting of key findings and associated actions.  Revision 
of the Quality Assurance Framework to include a more 
holistic overview of practice. 

Recommendation 
10 

Monthly    
Reports 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

5.2.2 Increase the quality and quantity of analysis in audit reports.  Recommendation 
10 

March 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

5.2.3 Deliver audit training and one-to-one support to managers 
to support completion of higher quality audits and utilisation 
of findings to improve practice.  

Recommendation 
10 

May 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

5.2.4 As part of the Quality Assurance Framework introduce 
Practice Weeks. 

Recommendation 

4 

April 2019 Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

5.2.5 Implement the EHCP quality standards and audit 
framework. 

Recommendation 
10 and 4 

January 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion  

5.2.6 Train and support all SEND auditors to ensure consistency 
of approach. 

Recommendation 
10 

February 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

5.2.7 Audit all EHCPs at transition to secondary school.    Recommendation 
10 and 4 

June 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

5.2.8 Audit all new EHCPs issued from January 2019 within the 
first year. 

Recommendation 
10 and 4 

December 2019 David Graham 

Acting Head of Inclusion 

5.2.9 Further embed learning from customer feedback and 
evidence how this has been used to improve practice.   

Recommendation 

ALL 

May 2019 Andy Smith 

Acting Head of SIA 

 

P
age 29



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

24 
 

Key Area 6 Workforce Development        Lead: Victoria Gent 

Outcome statements: 

 Maintain the recruitment of dedicated staff and ensure vacant posts are permanently recruited to. 

 Improve the retention of skilled, experienced staff within the children's workforce. 

 Development of a knowledgeable, skilled and resilient children's workforce able to deliver improved outcomes for children. 

 A consistent approach to health and wellbeing of our workforce as a key enabler of long term professional success and central to our staff 
retention. 

 Action Ofsted Ref Due Lead 

6.1 Maintain the recruitment of staff 

6.1.1 Continue rolling recruitment programme and centralised 
panels for Children's Social Care. 

ALL Review 
Quarterly 

Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

6.1.2 Continue to develop the Social Work Academy for all new 
social workers to Lancashire as part of our workforce 
strategy.  

Recommendation 

2, 3 

Review 

June 2019 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

6.1.3 Support current employees to become social work qualified 
through a "Grow your Own scheme." 

ALL April 2019 Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.1.4 Development of the Teaching Partnership to maximise the 
number of placements available to students by increasing 
the number of statutory placements from 1 to 2 per student 
across the partnership (LCC, Blackpool and Blackburn with 
Darwen) by the end of academic year 2019/20. 

ALL March 2020 Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.1.5 Reduction of agency staff to less than 5 %. ALL Review Monthly Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

6.2  Reduce staff turnover in children's services 

P
age 30



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

25 
 

6.2.1 Revise the quarterly children's services workforce profile to 
provide detailed understanding of retention across the 
county, including internal movement and the reasons for the 
use of agency staff. 

ALL March 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.2.2 Improve the use of the Grade 9 (senior practitioner) panel   
process. 

ALL April 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.2.3 Establish an updated career pathway with routes for 
aspiring managers and those who want to remain in 
practice. 

ALL July 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.2.4 Updated staff "health check" to be completed to ascertain 
the views of staff.   

ALL May 2019 Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker 

6.2.5 Evaluation of Leadership Academy to be completed. ALL April 2019 Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.2.6 Promote the recognition of staff in an annual children's 
services awards event. 

ALL September 2019 Debbie Cookson 

Team Manager  

Advanced Practitioners 

6.2.7 Ensure all managers are briefed on the key building blocks 
of good staff retention. 

ALL April 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.2.8 Ensure staff have manageable, appropriate caseloads. ALL Review Monthly Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

David Graham 
Acting Head of Inclusion 

6.2.9 Review the current performance scorecard in relation to the ALL March 2019 Victoria Gent 

P
age 31



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

26 
 

workforce, including staff experience and Assessed & 
Supported Year in Employment (ASYE) numbers. 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.3 Improve the development of the workforce 

6.3.1 Revise and refresh the current training offer, ensuring it is 
aligned with the Ofsted inspection recommendations and 
key priorities, including strengths based practice, neglect 
and domestic abuse. 

ALL March 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker  

Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.3.2 Support and prepare staff for the National Accreditation 
Scheme.  

ALL Workshops to 
commence 

September 2019 

Victoria Gent 

Head of Service, CSC East Locality 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker  

Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.3.3 Continue to embed the KSS in all management frameworks. ALL March 2019 Brendan Lee 
Victoria Gent 
Rose Howley 

Locality Heads of CSC 

6.3.4 Promote opportunities for experienced staff to become 
practice educators, increasing the quantity and quality of 
practice learning placements. 

ALL Review 
Quarterly 

Rachel Rump 

Skills, Learning & Development 

6.3.5 Continue to provide a robust and well supported first year in 
practice that focuses on development and resilience. 

ALL Review 

June 2019 

(As part of SW 
Academy 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker  

Rachel Rump 

P
age 32



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

27 
 

Review) Skills, Learning & Development 

6.3.6 Analysis of exit interviews to inform understanding of those 
leaving Lancashire. 

ALL Quarterly Report Debbie Cookson 

Team Manager  

Advanced Practitioners 

6.4 Support the health and wellbeing of our staff 

6.4.1 Ensure flexible working policies are applied consistently 
across the county to promote work life balance. 

ALL Review 
Quarterly 

Victoria Gent 

Head of Service  

CSC East Locality 

All Heads of Service  

6.4.2 Development of health and wellbeing champions across 
children's services to improve localised initiatives. 
Development of quarterly Champions Board meeting. 

ALL April 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.4.3 Promote the health and wellbeing of staff as part of 
supportive, reflective supervision. 

ALL Quarterly 
Monitoring 

Bertie Goffe 

Principal Social Worker  

Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

6.5 Monitor our performance on the 4 key work streams of the workforce strategy 

6.5.1 Review and refresh the current workforce performance 
scorecard. 

ALL March 2019 Victoria Gent 

Head of Service 

CSC East Locality 

 
 
 
 

P
age 33



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

28 
 

How we will know we are making a difference 

What Our Children Will Say: What Our Partners Will Say: 

Effective Partnership Working  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Effective Partnership Working 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Prevention 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Prevention 
 
 
 
 

I know who to talk to if I feel 
worried or frightened. 

 I am happy and feel safe. 
 

We work together within a shared 
framework and understand and respect 

each other's contribution and role. 

We are working together with a clear 
vision and shared culture for improving 
children's services.  

 

I have one key worker who I 
trust and who knows me well.  

 

I don't keep having to tell my 
story to lots of different people.  

 
As foster carers and adopters we 

feel supported and listened to. 

We get the right help at the right time to 
support our children and young people. 

 

We work together as professionals and agencies, using our 
specialist knowledge to support children and young people 
achieve permanence.  

 

 

We provide the right support at the right time to ensure 
children and families needs are met at the point of 
identification, reducing the need for higher level services..  
 

P
age 34



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

29 
 

 

Purposeful Practice 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Purposeful Practice 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Permanence and Corporate Parenting 
 
 

 
Permanence and Corporate Parenting  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I understand why I have a social 
worker and how they will help me 
and my family. My life feels better. 
 

I trust my social worker 
and I know them well. 

 

We work together effectively and 
our meetings are purposeful and 

inclusive. 
 

We share risks effectively. 
We feel equal partners. 

The council is getting better 
at being a corporate parent. 

 

I receive the information to help 
me to be successful in adult life, 

at the time I need it. 

My social worker understands the important things that have 
happened to me in the past and talks to all the people who have 
important information to help me.  

 

We are clear about our role and 
contribution as corporate parents. 

 

We share our learning and 
use it to change practice.  

 

We listen to what children and young 
people say is important and use their 
feedback to shape our services.  

 

P
age 35



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

30 
 

 

 
 

Effective Use of Performance Data 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Effective Use of Performance Data 
 
 

Managers who run the service use 
accurate information about how services 
are doing, so they can improve the right 
things.  
 

We share and utilise data and intelligence 
effectively to ensure that we are 

delivering good services. 
 

P
age 36



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

31 
 

Appendix 1: Governance Structure 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lancashire Safeguarding 
Children Board 

 Oversight and scrutiny of delivery to 
children in need and in need of 
protection 

 Neglect strategy 
 Domestic abuse strategy   
 Planning of services  
 Reviews of serious cases  

Corporate Parenting 
Board 

 Oversight and scrutiny of 
permanence and corporate 
parenting delivery  

Getting to Good Board 

 

  Communication strategy 
 Monitor whole system improvement and plan delivery  

 

MASH and Demand 
Management Board 

 
Delivers coordinated 
demand management 
strategy and quality 
front door 
 

 

 

Purposeful Practice 

Board 

Delivers change in 
social work practice – 
quality and compliance 
 
     

 

 

Data Quality and 
Performance 

Board  
Self-assessment - 

Data delivery 
improvement and 

use of data 

Workforce 
Development 

Board 
Recruitment - 

Health and 
wellbeing – 

Retention - Skills 
and knowledge 

Corporate Management 
Team 

 Oversight and support for 
improvement and change 

 

Monthly Safeguarding 
Reviews 

 Leader and CEO Oversight of 
leadership, management and 
governance of Children's 
Social Care 

 

Cabinet 

 Oversight of leadership management 
and governance of Children's Social 
Care, Education and Partnerships 

Transitioning to BAU Under development 

Permanence and 
Children in our Care 

Board 

Deliver improvement 
through projects and 
change activities 
 
 

 

 

Health and Well Being 
Board  

 Oversight and scrutiny of multi-
agency plans and strategies 
related to health  

  

Children's Services 
Scrutiny  

 Oversight and scrutiny of the 
Getting to Good Plan as it 
relates to Children's Social Care 
and Early Help 

Education Scrutiny  

 Oversight and scrutiny of 
opportunities for children in the 
social care system to promote 
their success in schools and in 
gaining skills 

Children's 

Partnership 

Multi-agency early 
help 
 
 

P
age 37



Lancashire Getting to Good Plan 2019/20 
 

 

32 
 

 
Appendix 2: Library of Plans: delivering improvement and change 

 

Ch
ild

re
n's

 Se
rv

ice
s 

Ge
tti

ng
 to

 G
oo

d 
Pl

an

La
nc

as
hi

re
 A

m
bi

tio
n 

-
A 

vis
io

n 
fo

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
ou

tc
om

es
 in

 La
nc

as
hi

re
 

Em
ot

io
na

l W
ell

be
in

g a
nd

 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

Tr
an

sfo
rm

at
io

n 
Pl

an

SE
ND

 W
rit

te
n 

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 A
ct

io
n

Ou
r l

ib
ra

ry
 o

f p
lan

s

Children, young people and families in need of help are safe, healthy and supported to achieve

Ou
r 

Vi
sio

n

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pa

re
nt

in
g S

tra
te

gy

Ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

Fa
m

ily
 

W
ell

be
in

g S
er

vic
e 

Pl
an

CL
A 

Su
ffi

cie
nc

y S
tra

te
gy

Yo
ut

h 
Ju

sti
ce

 P
lan

Ch
ild

re
n’s

 Se
rv

ice
s W

or
kf

or
ce

 
St

ra
te

gy

 

 

 

 
 
 

P
age 38



Corporate Parenting Board
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 28 March 2019

Report of the Head of Service, Policy, Information and Commissioning (Start 
Well)

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Supported Accommodation for Care Leavers

Contact for further information: 
Rachel Blundell, 01772 538105, Financial Intelligence Manager (Start Well) 
rachel.blundell@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The County Council currently supports a range of accommodation for homeless 
young people and care leavers and recognises that there is more that we need to do 
to improve the quality and range of accommodation available and to ensure that the 
support on offer helps to improve outcomes.

Recommendation

The Corporate Parenting Board is asked to note the current plans to recommission 
provision and to comment on and to inform our plans for a wider strategic review.

Background and Advice 

The County Council currently supports a range of accommodation for homeless 
young people and care leavers. Our Children Looked After Sufficiency Strategy 
2017-2020, agreed by Cabinet in October 2017, recognised that there was more that 
we need to do to improve the quality and range of accommodation available and to 
ensure that the support on offer helps to improve outcomes.

Moving forward, we have shared feedback from young people and our design 
objectives with potential service providers and are finalising our plans to 
recommission these services.  We want services to: 

 Prevent homelessness
 Ensure sufficient emergency accommodation is available to meet need if 

homelessness cannot be prevented
 Ensure a range of appropriate housing and support options are available for care 

leavers to move on to in a planned way
 Ensure that the geographical location of services enables young people to be 

able to maintain links with family, friends and college

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 Ensure that services are available for young people with a range of needs 
including individuals with complex needs including teenage parents, pregnant 
young people and offenders

 Ensure that services meet the cultural needs of young people
 Ensure that the level of staffing within services and the knowledge, skills and 

values of staff meet the needs of the intended client group
 Ensure that young people are able to move on from services at an appropriate 

time to a suitable setting
 Deliver value for money

The Corporate Parenting Board will receive a presentation highlighting:

- Some of the issues associated with current provision
- The current work to recommission supported accommodation for care leavers 

and young people who are homeless
- Plans for a wider review of accommodation for care leavers and young people 

who are homeless, to ensure that we have long term arrangements which are 
fit for purpose

Page 40



1

Corporate Parenting Strategy

Action Plan
Objective 1
Children and young people have a voice in the way we deliver our services
‘To ensure that children and young people are consulted and actively participate in 
the decisions we make about how we deliver our services’.
‘Nothing about me without me’.

Action Evidence Target date
Children and young people 
participate in their reviews

Immediate and 
ongoing

Children and young people 
chair their own meetings

Immediate and 
ongoing

Children and young people 
are part of staff interviews

Young people's questions 
were asked in recent YOT 
interviews.
Young People involved in 
the EDCS interview.

Immediate and 
ongoing

Children and young people 
have a voice in how we 
deliver services

Immediate and 
ongoing

Impact

Objective 2
Children and young people can remain safely at home
‘To ensure that early support is provided at the right time to prevent the need for 
statutory intervention’.

Action Evidence Target date
Care planning routinely 
considers return home

Immediate and 
ongoing

Early Help is provided to 
help children and young 
people live safely at home

Immediate and 
ongoing

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



2

Social workers and 
managers will be trained to 
look for strengths within 
every family

01/09/2019

Impact

Objective 3
Care leavers in Lancashire will have a ‘Local Offer’
‘To ensure that all care leavers feel supported and can access a range of services to 
promote their continued wellbeing into adulthood’.

Action Evidence Target date
Care leavers will know what 
help is available

01/05/2019

The local offer will be 
available, easy to access and 
regularly updated

01/05/2019

The Staying Put offer will be 
refreshed and shared

01/05/2019

Young people will be 
prepared by using ASDAN

01/05/2019

Young People will be given 
education and training 
opportunities

Immediate and 
ongoing

Impact

Objective 4
Children and young people will be supported in their education, employment and 
training
‘To close the achievement gap between those children and young people that the 
local authority cares for and those that are cared for by their own families’.

Action Evidence Target date

Page 42



3

All children and young 
people will be provided with 
education

Immediate and 
ongoing

Personal Education Plans 
will be reviewed and made 
more meaningful and age 
appropriate

01/09/2019

A plan will be developed to 
improve young people's 
performance in key stage 4

01/11/2019

Impact

Objective 5
Children and young people will have a suitable place to live and be cared for
‘To ensure that the children and young people we care for have a range of suitable 
and appropriate accommodation to meet their immediate and long term needs’.

Action Evidence Target date
Review what accommodation 
is available, and what is 
needed

01/04/2019

Young people will be involved 
in arrangements for where 
they will live

Immediate and 
ongoing

Opportunities for young 
people to 'stay close' to their 
former residential 
placements will be explored

01/11/2019

There will be a flexible 
approach to 'setting up 
home'

Flexible payment card 
agreed to enable.

Achieved

Impact

Objective 6

Page 43



4

The health and wellbeing of our children and young people in care and care leavers 
will be a priority for Lancashire County Council
‘To improve the health and wellbeing of the children and young people we care for’.

Action Evidence Target date
Access to specialist health 
services will be improved

01/11/2019

We will use the SDQ to 
support young people's 
health care

01/04/2019

We will look at innovative 
ways to support children 
and young people access 
health care

01/03/2020

We will promote timely 
health and dental checks

01/05/2019

Impact

Objective 7
Children and young people will receive appropriate financial support
‘To ensure that young people have enough money to provide for their needs whilst in 
care and after they have left care and ensure that they are supported financially to
establish their own homes’.

Action Evidence Target date
We will engage young 
people in the ASDAN 
programme to prepare them 
for independence

Immediate and 
ongoing.

We will be flexible with the 
'setting up home money

Flexible payment card 
agreed to enable.

Achieved

Impact

Page 44



5

Objective 8
Children are protected from harm and risk of exploitation
‘To ensure that children are protected from harm and exploitation and ensure that 
they are provided with support to overcome any pull factors that would lead
them to being exploited’.

Action Evidence Target date
Specialist exploitation 
teams/ workers will support 
young people at risk

Immediate and 
ongoing

Social workers, police, 
carers and YOT teams will 
work together to divert 
children and young people 
from crime

There is a multi agency 'In 
Care out of Trouble' group.
There is a revised protocol 
between the police and 
local authority which looks 
to avoid unnecessarily 
criminalising children in 
Residential Care.

Immediate and 
ongoing

Impact

Objective 9
Children and young people in our care and care leaver achievements are celebrated
‘To ensure that the children we look after and have looked after, are recognised for 
their achievements and successes’.

Action Evidence Target date
We will have Corporate 
Parenting Champions across 
Lancashire

01/03/2019

We will recognise and 
celebrate the success of our 
young people

PROUD event 26/4/2019

Impact

Page 45



Page 46


	Agenda
	2 Notes of the Meeting and Matters Arising from 23 January 2019
	3 Getting to Good Plan (10 mins)
	6 Current Activity (30 mins)
	7 Corporate Parenting Board Action Plan (10 mins)

